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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA 

DUSTY RAY SPENCER, 1 
1 

Appellant, 1 
1 

vs * 1 
1 

STATE OF FLORIDA, 1 
1 

Appellee, 1 
\ 

CASE NO. 85,119 

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

In this brief, the symbol I1R1I will designate the 

current record on appeal; the symbol I1PR1l will designate the 

prior record on appeal from the original appeal, Fla. Sup. Ct. 

Case No. 80 ,987 ;  and the symbol llT1l will designate the tran- 

scripts from the original appeal. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The defendant was charged by amended information with 

four offenses: Count I - first degree murder of Karen Spencer 

(the defendant’s wife) on January 18, 1992, by blunt force trauma 

and/or by stabbing with a knife; Count I1 - aggravated assault 
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on Timothy Johnson (the defendant's wife's son) on January 18, 

1992, with a knife; Count I11 - attempted first degree murder of 

Karen Spencer on January 4, 1992, by application of blunt force 

with a deadly weapon, an iron; Count IV - aggravated battery on 

January 4, 1992, by causing great bodily harm or by using a 

deadly weapon, an iron. (PR 602-604) A jury trial commenced on 

November 2, 1992, before the Honorable Belvin Perry, Jr., Judge 

of the Circuit Court of the Ninth Judicial Circuit of Florida, in 

and for Orange County. (PR 901-904) The jury found the defendant 

guilty of first degree murder, aggravated assault, attempted 

second degree murder, and aggravated battery. (PR 1081-1084) 

The penalty phase of the trial was held on December 8, 

1992. During the penalty phase, the state introduced, over the 

defendant's hearsay and relevancy objections, statements of the 

victim concerning a fight she had had with her husband, the 

defendant, on December 10, 1991, and of alleged threats he had 

made to her on that date and again on December 11, 1991. ( P R  9 0 -  

95, 124-125) 

The court denied a requested defense instruction that 

the jury was permitted to consider mercy in its penalty recommen- 

dation. (PR 778-781 ,  1396-1397) The court also denied the defen- 

dant's motion to declare the death penalty unconstitutional 

because of the vague aggravating circumstances of heinous, 

atrocious, and cruel, and cold, calculated, and premeditated, and 

the jury instructions thereon. (PR 628-650, 657-676 ,  1331-1332) 

The jury recommended by a vote of seven to five that the defen- 
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dant be sentenced to death for the first degree murder. (PR 1148) 

Following the denial of the defendant’s motion for a 

new penalty phase, and additional argument, the court sentenced 

the defendant to death. In so doing, the court found the exis- 

tence of three aggravating circumstances: (b) previous convic- 

tions of felonies involving the use or threat of violence, to- 

wit: the contemporaneous convictions of attempted second degree 

murder and aggravated battery stemming from the January 4th 

incident, and aggravated assault to the victim’s son on January 

18th; (h) heinous, atrocious, and cruel; and (i) cold, calculat- 

ed, or premeditated, although the  court did find that reasonable 

jurists could differ on the finding of this circumstance. (PR 

1231-1236, 1243) The court rejected all of the statutory miti- 

gating factors, including circumstance (b) that the defendant 

suffered from extreme mental or emotion disturbance, and mitiga- 

tor (f) that the capacity of the defendant to appreciate the 

criminality of his conduct or to conform his conduct to the 

requirements of the law was substantially impaired, despite 

recognizing that the expert testimony was undisputed regarding 

the existence of these mitigating factors. (PR 1237-1241) The 

court rejected these factors, finding that the defendant knew 

right from wrong. (PR 1239, 1241) The court did find the exis 

tence of a single nonstatutory mitigating factor, listing the 

defendant’s alcohol and drug abuse, his paranoid personality 

disorder, the fact that the defendant was sexually abused as a 

child by his father, the defendant’s honorable military service 
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record, his good employment record and reputation with his paint- 

ing company, and the fact that the defendant could live in a 

structured prison environment, that does not contain women, 

without being dangerous. (PR 1242) The court found "this [singu- 

lar] mitigating factor to be present, but [gave] it very little 

weight." (PR 1242) The court ruled that the aggravating factors 

it had found greatly outweighed the one nonstatutory mitigating 

factor, ruling that death was the appropriate sentence (even 

without the aggravator of CCP). (PR 1242-1243) 

The court also sentenced the defendant on the remaining 

counts to five years on Count I1 (aggravated assault), fifteen 

years on Count 111 (attempted second degree murder), and fifteen 

years on Count IV (aggravated battery), all of the sentences to 

run consecutively fo r  a total of thirty-five years. (PR 1243, 

1252-1257) As his reason for the guidelines departure from a 

recommended sentence of twelve to seventeen years (or a permitted 

range of seven to twenty-two years), the court listed the un- 

scored capital crime of first degree murder. (PR 1243, 1248-1249) 

On direct appeal, this Court affirmed the judgments but 

reversed the death sentence, striking the aggravating factor of 

CCP, and finding the existence, as a matter of law, of t he  statu- 

tory mitigating factors (b) that the defendant suffered from 

extreme mental or emotion disturbance, and mitigator (f) that 

the capacity of the defendant to appreciate the criminality of 

his conduct or to conform his conduct to the requirements of the 

law was substantially impaired. Spencer v. State, 645 So.2d 377 
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(Fla. 1994). While Justice Kogan would have remanded for the 

imposition of a life sentence since the death sentence would not 

be proportional in this instance, the majority remanded the case 

to the trial court for it to reconsider its sentence in light of 

the stricken aggravator and the existence of the two additional 

statutory mitigating circumstances. Id. 

On remand, neither side attempted to introduce any 

additional evidence. (R 3 ,  9, 19) Following the argument of 

counsel, the trial court again imposed the death sentence on the 

defendant. (R 5 6 - 7 0 ,  104-119) This time, the court found two 

aggravating circumstances: (b) previous convictions of felonies 

involving the use or threat of violence, to-wit: the contempora- 

neous convictions of attempted second degree murder and aggravat- 

ed battery stemming from the January 4th incident, and the 

contemporaneous conviction of the aggravated assault to the 

victim's son on January 18th; and (h) heinous, atrocious, and 

cruel. ( R  105-108) The court, citing only to this Court's 

previous opinion in this case, found that the defendant had 

established as mitigating factors the two statutory mental 

mitigators of (b) that the defendant suffered from extreme mental 

or emotion disturbance, and mitigator (f) that the capacity of 

the defendant to appreciate the criminality of his conduct or to 

conform his conduct to the requirements of the law was substan- 

tially impaired. (R 108) 

"any other factors in the defendant's backgroundll as a single 

The court also found the existence of 

mitigator, listing the defendant's alcohol and drug abuse, the 
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defendant's paranoid personality disorder, and the sexual abuse 

that Dusty suffered as a child by his father. ( R  108) The court 

found llthisll (singular) mitigating factor to be present, but gave 

it "very little weight." ( R  108) 

The trial court's order also stated that it took "into 

considerationI1 the defendant's honorable military service record, 

the defendant's good employment record or reputation with his 

painting company, and that the defendant could function in a 

structured environment that does not contain women, without being 

a danger to himself or others, which factors were unrebutted. ( R  

108) The order does not reveal that the court found these 

factors to be mitigating. In fact , t h e  court, in weighing the 

statutory mitigating factors, used the mitigation evidence of the 

defendant's successful business and his heroic act "of rescuing 

someone while station (sic) in the Philippine IslandsI1 to aggra- 

vate the crime and/or diminish the statutory mitigation. ( R  117) 

For the weighing process, the trial judge indicated 

that, in order to be mitigation, these factors had to relate to 

the crime, stating: 

In weighting (sic) the  mitigating 
circumstances the Court must examine 
what connection they had to the murder 
of Karen Spencer. Both experts felted 
(sic) that due to the Defendant's long 
history of drug and alcohol abuse and 
his personality disorder he committed 
this crime while he was under the influ- 
ence of an extreme mental or emotional 
disturbance, and that his capacity to 
appreciate the criminality of his con- 
duct or to conform his conduct to the 
requirements of the law was substantial- 
ly impaired. 

6 



(R 117) (emphasis added) Then, the court, although not finding 

the aggravator of cold, calculated, and premeditated (since this a 
Court had struck that aggravating circumstance) , utilized factors 

of that aggravator in its weighing decision, including that the 

defendant fantasized about killing his wife, his alleged motive 

to kill her, and his prior alleged threats (which were only shown 

by hearsay) .l ( R  117-118) 

In conclusion, and despite expert testimony to the 

contrary2, the court utilized the cold, calculatedness and pre- 

meditation and the fact that he was Sane (knew right from wrong) 

to diminish the weight given to the statutory mental mitigators: 

The facts leading up to the killing 
and the nature of the killing are indic- 
ative of a deliberate thought process by 
the Defendant to kill Karen Spencer, if 

On direct appeal, the defendant raised the impropriety of 
hearsay statements to be introduced at the penalty phase of the 
trial where the defendant had no means to rebut this hearsay. 
This Court, in its opinion, found that this hearsay evidence was 
admissible since the defendant could cross-examine the police 
officer whom the victim had told of these alleged threats 
though the defendant had no means to test the veracity of the 
victim’s statements themselves to the officer). 
concluded that, because it struck the CCP aggravator, this 
alleged error was harmless. 
use by the trial court in its sentencing decision, the appellant 
continues to maintain that it was improperly admitted and uti- 
lized since he could have no meaningful opportunity to rebut and 
to discredit the veracity of the content of this complaint to the 
police and, especially in light of the fact that Karen Spencer 
invited Dusty back into the marital home for the Christmas 
holidays after the alleged threats, there is no indication of any 
reliability and no way to tell whether Karen Spencer was lying to 
the police concerning these statements. 

1 

(even 

This Court also 

Because of this hearsay’s persistent 

- See Spencer v. State, 645 So.2d 377, 384 (Fla. 1994), 
wherein this Court specifically held that the mental mitigating 
evidence negated, as a matter of law, the cold, calculated, and 
premeditated factor. a 

7 



she did not comply with his wishes. The 
acts of the Defendant clearly show that 
he knew what he was doing and he knew it 
was wrong. After carefully reviewing 
the record, and taking all of the miti- 
gating circumstances in the light most 
favorable to the Defendant, this Court 
finds that they had a very small, if 
any3 connection to the murder of Karen 
Spencer. 

Thus, while this Court gives the 
mitigating of (sic) circumstances of 
extreme mental or emotional disturbance 
and impaired capacity to conform his 
conduct to the requirements of the law, 
some weight, it is clear that by any 
reasonable assessment and evaluation of 
the evidence4 that I can not give them 
overwhelmingly great weight. 

( R  118) (footnotes and emphasis added). The trial court conclud- 

ed that, in arriving at its death decision, it had Ilcarefully 

weighed and considered each statutory aggravating and mitigating 

circumstance. . . . I 1  ( R  119) (emphasis supplied). 

A notice of appeal from the capital resentencing was 

timely filed. (R 156) This appeal follows. 

The trial judge, apparently, disagrees with this Court’s 
opinion to the contrary, SDencer v. State, suBra at 384-385, as 
well as the experts’ analyses and conclusions upon which this 
Court  relied in its decision to reverse. 

* ~ e e  footnote 3, sunra. 
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STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

Dusty Ray Spencer and Karen Johnson fell in love and 

were married. (T 452) For Dusty, it was his second marriage; his 

first ending in divorce and bankruptcy f o r  Dusty. (PR 231) Karen 

Spencer became a partner in Dusty's painting business, handling 

most of the financial aspects of the business. (T 902-903, 920) 

Working together, the business thrived and the couple purchased a 

boat which they named "Dusty's Dream" and which they kept moored 

in Daytona Beach, ( T  5 5 3 )  They would often go to Daytona on 

weekends and go out boating together. ( T  553) 

Then, in early December 1991, Karen went to Daytona by 

herself for the weekend. When she returned, she told Dusty their 

marriage was over and kicked him out of the house. 

The state introduced evidence in the penalty phase of the trial, 

over the defendant's objections on hearsay and relevancy grounds 

and because of the remoteness of time, that on December 10, 1991, 

the defendant confronted Karen over $3300 which she had withdrawn 

from the business account. (PR 125, 183) The couple got in a 

fight over the money, which culminated in Dusty choking Karen and 

making her promise to replace the money o r  he would kill her. ( P R  

125-127) After Karen reported the incident to the police, Dusty 

was arrested and jailed. (PR 127) On December 11, 1991, Karen 

Spencer telephoned the police and reported that she had received 

a phone call from her husband in jail, who reportedly told her 

that when he got out of jail, he would finish what he started. 

( T  453, 552) 

(PR 128, 132, 133-134) 
0 9 



When the holiday season approached, Karen asked Dusty 

to return home. ( T  453, 552) [It appears that Karen's parents 

were to visit over Christmas, and she did not want them to know 

that she and Dusty were separated. (PR 5 5 2 ) ]  Dusty, thinking his 

marital problems were over, moved back home, purchased Christmas 

presents for his wife and her teenage son, Tim, and had Christmas 

dinner with his in-laws. (T 453, 5 5 2 - 5 5 3 )  Then, after Christmas 

was over and Karen's parents left town, Karen again kicked Dusty 

out of the house. (T 453,  5 5 2 - 5 5 3 )  

Dusty again was heart-broken and feared that Karen 

would do what his first wife had done, take his business away 

from him and ruin him financially, (PR 179 ,  2 3 1 )  While drinking 

with his friends on New Year's Day, Dusty reportedly said that he 

should take his wife out on their boat and throw her overboard. 

(T 913-915 ,  9 2 5 - 9 2 6 )  The friends who heard this statement, 

including a friend of Karen's, did not take this statement 

seriously at all and, hence, did not report it to Karen or to the 

police. (T 915,  926 )  

According to psychologists, Dusty became extremely 

paranoid and stressed out over his failed relationship. (PR 1 6 3 -  

164, 1 6 7 - 1 6 9 ,  1 7 7 ,  179 ,  1 8 9 - 1 9 1 ,  2 4 5 - 2 4 7 ,  344,  3 7 7 )  He returned 

home on January 4, 1992, and got into a fight with Karen in her 

bedroom. (T 462)  He struck Karen several times with his hands as 

they struggled. ( T  462) 

into his mother's room, where he saw the defendant on top of his 

mother, hitting her with his hands. (T 4 6 2 - 4 6 3 )  When he told 

Tim was awakened by the noise and went 

LO 



Dusty to stop, Dusty picked up a clothes iron from Karen's shelf 

and struck Tim in the head with it. (T 463, 539, 560) Tim 

retreated to his own bedroom where he was followed by Dusty, who 

struck him several more times with the iron. (T 464-465, 539) 

Dusty dropped the iron and returned to his wife's bedroom, but 

she had already fled the house to a neighbor's. (T 466, 540-541) 

At the neighbor's house, Karen requested help, saying 

that Dusty had beaten her up and was beating Tim with an iron; 

she did not indicate that Dusty had ever hit her with the iron. 

(T 569-571, 586, 599) The neighbor called the police and went to 

the Spencer house, only to see Dusty leaving and that Tim was 

left alone. (T 467-468, 572-575, 587) 

Tim and Karen were taken to the hospital where they 

were treated f o r  their injuries. ( T  469, 641-642) The treating 

physician testified, over a hearsay objection, that Karen had 

told him that she had been beaten with the iron. ( T  648) (This 

is the only testimony about Karen being hit with an iron.) 

Dusty left town after the incident, to return only on 

January 17th or 18th. (PR 364-365, 368) A neighbor testified 

that he observed the defendant on the morning of January 17th, 

parked down the street from the Spencer house, watching his 

house. (T 775-777) The neighbor indicated that the defendant 

appeared to have an angry look on his face, "like something had 

went wrong." (T 777; PR 217-218) The defendant stayed there for 

a short while, then drove off. (T 778-781) 

On the morning of January 18, 1992, shortly before the 

11 



painters were scheduled to arrive at the Spencer house to get 

their paints and assignments for the day, Dusty Spencer went to 

his house to procure the title to his automobile. (T 456 ,  903,  

9 1 7 - 9 1 8 ,  921 -922 ;  PR 2 0 7 - 2 0 8 )  Even though he had lived in the 

house for almost three years, Dusty wore disposable painter's 

gloves in case his wife was not home and he had to break into the 

house to obtain his car title. (T 501-502 ;  PR 212 ,  3 6 9 )  

Dusty's wife was home, though, and the kitchen area 

showed signs of a struggle. ( T  665-666 ;  PR 2 0 8 )  Tim, hearing t h e  

commotion, awoke, grabbed Dusty's rifle from his mother's bed- 

room, and found his mother and Dusty in the back yard. (T 472, 

478-479, 5 4 2 )  He testified that he saw the defendant striking 

Karen Spencer with a brick (although the medical examiner testi- 

fied that there were no signs of any injuries caused by a brick) 

and observed a lot of blood on Karen's face. (T 4 7 9 - 4 8 1 ,  483 ,  

7 5 0 )  Tim tried to shoot the defendant. (T 497,  5 4 2 )  When the 

rifle misfired, Tim turned it around and struck the defendant 

three times in the head with the rifle butt with such force as to 

cause the stock to shatter. (T 481,  497,  5 4 2 - 5 4 3 )  

When the defendant regained his composure from being 

struck, Tim then observed the defendant push Karen's head into 

the concrete wall of the house. (T 4 8 1 - 4 8 2 ,  5 4 3 - 5 4 4 )  Tim testi- 

fied that the defendant then pulled up his mother's nightgown and 

told Karen to show your child "your pussy." (T 4 8 1 )  Tim then ran 

to his mother's side, who was unconscious, and attempted to carry 

her off. (T 492,  547) Tim testified that Dusty pulled a knife 
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from his pocket and pointed it at Tim. (T 484,  4 9 2 )  Tim never 

saw Dusty stab his mother with the knife. ( T  5 4 8 )  Tim then ran 

to neighbors' houses to summon aid and attempt to find another 

gun. (T 4 9 8 - 5 0 0 ,  502-504, 589-590 ,  5 9 5 - 5 9 6 )  

When the police arrived they found Karen Spencer dead, 

having been stabbed three times, cut on the face and arms (defen- 

sive wounds, in the medical examiner's opinion), and having blunt 

trauma to the back of her head, (T 659-662, 678-681, 7 2 6 - 7 3 9 )  

The medical examiner testified t h a t  the s tab  wounds to the chest 

and the blunt force trauma to the back of the head both would 

have caused death. (T 7 4 2 - 7 4 3 )  

have lost consciousness very quickly after the trauma to the 

head. ( T  749 ,  7 5 4 )  He also testified that he could not be sure 

of the sequence of the injuries, but that if, as Tim had testi- 

fied, there was a lot of blood on the victim's face when Tim 

first saw her, the knife injuries to the face must already have 

He opined that the victim would 

occurred since there were no other injuries to the face and head 

that would have caused the bleeding on her face as Tim had 

recounted. (T  726-730 ,  749 -750 ;  PR 1 0 4 - 1 0 5 )  

During the penalty phase of the trial, the psycholo- 

gists revealed what Dusty had told them he remembered about the 

event. Dusty went to his former home to find the car title and 

he and his wife got into an argument and a struggle ensued. (PR 

207-208 ,  3 6 9 - 3 7 0 )  The struggle continued out into the back yard, 

where Karen grabbed a landscaping brick and started hitting 

Dusty. ( P R  208,  3 7 0 - 3 7 1 )  Dusty wrestled the brick from Karen, 
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when Tim appeared on the scene and struck him repeatedly with the 

rifle stock. (PR 371) After being struck, the defendant did not 

recall any further events until seeing Karen laying on the 

ground, apparently dead. (PR 208-209, 356, 371) The psycholo- 

gists believed that Dusty's amnesia concerning the event was 

genuine. (PR 378-381) 

The psychologists also opined that the defendant 

suffered from alcohol and drug abuse which definitely contributed 

to the crime and the method of the crime, was normally a very 

controlled and emotionally isolated person, who, after experienc- 

ing great stress, such as the breakup of his marriage, could lose 

control of his bottled up emotions and go into a violent rage. 

(PR 163-164, 167-169, 173, 175, 177, 192, 197, 213-215, 246-247, 

3 4 0 - 3 4 4 ,  3 4 6 - 3 5 5 ,  360 ,  372) The psychologists offered the 

unsefuted opinion that Dusty Spencer was under the influence of 

extreme mental or emotional disturbance at the time of the 

murder, and was unable, because of the severe stress and alcohol 

abuse, to "appreciate the wrongfulness of his actions, which 

occurred in a disassociative state," and was unable to conform 

his conduct to the requirements of the law. (PR 177-179, 2 0 4 - 2 0 5 ,  

355-356) 

Regarding the prior incidents of threats of harm on 

December 10-11, 1991, and January 1, 1992, a psychologist stated 

that this was indicative of his uncontrolled state, wherein Dusty 

did not understand the impact of his threats; they were not meant 

to be taken seriously, but were mere fantasizing and j u s t  expres- 
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sions of the defendant's displeasure. (PR 3 6 0 - 3 6 4 )  Concerning 

the acts of bringing gloves to the scene and parking his car away 

from the house, the doctors stated that this was not indicative 

of a heightened plan, because the defendant was not able to think 

out his actions rationally. ( P R  209, 3 7 3 - 3 7 4 )  As one doctor put 

it, ''This boy is confused." (PR 3 7 3 )  Concerning the brutality of 

the injuries, the doctor again opined that this was due to the 

defendant's mental impairment, that he lost control and the 

ability to control his actions. ( P R  2 0 5 )  The doctors testified 

that the defendant would be able to function well in the con- 

trolled environment of a prison, since his emotional problems and 

stress only surrounded his failed relationships with women. 

218, 2 3 1 )  

( P R  

Evidence presented in the penalty phase of the trial 

also revealed that the defendant had a troubled childhood, being 

emotionally abused and forced to wear a dress because he was not 

toilet trained, and being masturbated by his father. (PR 1 7 2 - 1 7 4 ,  

2 8 3 - 2 8 4 ,  2 8 8 )  

problem starting when he was thirteen years old. (PR 2 9 3 - 2 9 5 ,  

2 9 9 - 3 0 0 ,  3 0 2 - 3 0 7 ,  3 1 0 - 3 1 1 ,  3 1 5 - 3 1 6 ,  3 4 5 - 3 5 5 )  While not being 

legally intoxicated at the time of the offense, the continuing 

effect of the alcoholism would have led to his loss of control. 

The defendant also had a severe alcohol and drug 

( P R  348-355) 

The defendant served his country in the Marines, and 

performed admirably as a leader of his squad in rescue opera- 

tions. (PR 313-315) On another occasion, Dusty assisted in 
I * 

15 



saving an acquaintance's l i f e  when there was an accident which 

caused t h e  friend severe life-threatening head injuries. (PR 3 2 7 -  

331) 

and extremely conscientious about his painting business, which 

had an excellent r e p u t a t i o n ,  and f ea red  that Karen w a s  trying t o  

take his business away from h i m .  (PR 190-191, 318-319, 3 2 4 - 3 2 5 )  

Evidence also revealed that the defendant was a hard  worker 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Point I. The trial court erred in making its findings 

of fact in support of the death sentence where the findings were 

insufficient, where the court failed to consider appropriate 

mitigating factors, where the court erroneously found inappropri- 

ate aggravating circumstances, and where a comparison to other 

capital cases reveals that the only appropriate sentence in the 

instant case is a life sentence. 

Point 11. The trial court erroneously allowed the 

state to introduce evidence at the penalty phase of the trial of 

hearsay statements of the victim to police regarding a December 

10 and 11, 1991, incident, and erroneously considered such 

hearsay in his resentencing order. The hearsay statements 

deprived the defendant of his right to confrontation. Further, 

the alleged incident was too  remote in time to be relevant to the 

death determination, especially since the victim invited the 

defendant back to live in their marital home between December 

10th and the killing. 
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ARGUMENT 

POINT I. 

THE APPELLANT’S DEATH SENTENCE WAS 
IMPERMISSIBLY IMPOSED BECAUSE THE TRIAL 
COURT INCLUDED IMPROPER AGGRAVATING 
CIRCUMSTANCES, EXCLUDED EXISTING MITI- 
GATING CIRCUMSTANCES, AND FAILED TO 
PROPERLY FIND THAT THE MITIGATING CIR- 
CUMSTANCES OUTWEIGH THE AGGRAVATING 
CIRCUMSTANCES, RENDERING THE DEATH SEN- 
TENCE UNCONSTITUTIONAL. 

The sentence of death imposed upon Dusty Spencer must 

be vacated. The trial court found improper aggravating circum- 

stances and gave them excessive weight, failed to consider (or 

unfittingly gave only little weight to) highly relevant and 

appropriate mitigating circumstances, and improperly found that 

the aggravating circumstances outweighed the mitigating factors. 

These errors render Spencer’s death sentence unconstitutional in 

violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments, and Article I, 

Sections 9, 16, and 17, of the Florida Constitution. 

A. The Trial Court’s Sentencins Order Is Insufficient In Its 
Factual Basis And Rationale To SuDDort The Death Sentences. 

The trial court’s sentencing order is sparse, to say 

the l eas t ,  with its factual support, especially in rejecting or 

in assigning little weight to unrebutted significant mitigating 

factors. 

inaccurate facts only, not giving any detail as to rejection of 

The aggravating factors are supported by incomplete and 
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some facts and blind acceptance of others; the weighing of 

mitigating circumstances is conclusory only, offering absolutely 

no basis for giving only little weight to significant mitigation. 

The order is fraught with misspellings and grammar errors, 

showing clearly that this trial court did not carefully review 

his sentencing order and engage in a reasoned, thorough, and 

intelligent analysis, as is required by State v, Dixon, 283 So.2d 

1 (Fla. 19731, and its progeny. Such a careless order is an 

embarrassment to Florida justice and should not be countenanced. 

The death sentence cannot be affirmed on the basis of such 

insufficient written findings. To uphold such sentences on the 

basis of this order would deny the defendant his constitutional 

rights under the Sixth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the 

United States Constitution and Article I, Sections 9 and 17 of 

the Florida Constitution. 

This Court has stressed the importance of issuing 

specific written findings of fact in support of aggravation and 

mitigation in capital cases. Van Roval v. State, 497 So.2d 625 

(Fla. 1986); State v. Dixon, supra. The sentencing order must 

reflect that the determination as to which aggravating and 

mitigating circumstances apply under the facts of a particular 

case is the result of reasoned judgment" by the trial court. 

State v. Dixon, supra at 10. Florida law requires the judge to 

lay out the written reasons for finding aggravating and mitigat- 

ing factors, then to personally weigh each one in order to arrive 

at a reasoned judgment as to the appropriate sentence to impose. 
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Lucas v. State, 417 So.2d 250, 251 (Fla. 1982). The record must 

be clear that the trial judge "fulfilled that responsibility." 

- Id. 

Weighing the aggravating and mitigating circumstances 

is not a matter of merely listing conclusions. Nor do the 

written findings of fact merely serve to memorialize the trial 

court's decision. Van Royal v. State, supra at 628 .  Specific 

findings of fact are crucial to this Court's meaningful review of 

death sentences, without which adequate, reasoned review is 

impossible. Unless the written findings are supported by specif- 

ic facts, the Supreme Court cannot be assured that the trial 

court imposed the death sentence on a "well-reasoned application" 

of the aggravating and mitigating circumstances. Id.; Rhodes v. 
State, 547 So.2d 1201 (Fla. 1989). Although the Court considered 

the sentencing order sufficient (but barely) in Rhodes, the Court 

cautioned that henceforth trial judges must use greater care in 

preparing their sentencing orders so that it is clear to the 

reviewing court just how the trial judge arrived at the decision 

to impose death over life. As the Court held in Mann v. State, 

420 So.2d 5 7 8 ,  581 (Fla. 1982), the "trial judge's findings in 

regard to the death sentence should be of unmistakable clarity so 

that we can properly review them and not speculate as to what he 

found.'! See also Trawick v. State, 473 So.2d 1235, 1240 (Fla. 

1985). 

Here, the judge's analysis is not of "unmistakable 

clarity'! and it cannot be said that he llfulfilled that responsi- 
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bilityll of weighing the aggravating circumstances against the 

mitigating factors calling for life. The findings provide no ' 
clue as to what standard the court used in weighing the factors, 

why it found some aggravating factors despite substantial evi- 

dence to the contrary (see subsection B, infra), why it summarily 

rejected mitigators which had been unrefuted (see subsection C, 

infra), and why it gave some mitigating circumstances only little 

or very little weight when the evidence of those factors was sub- 

stantial and where those factors have been used to justify a 

reduction of a death sentence to life (see subsections C and D, 

infra). The death sentence must be reversed on this basis alone. 

Santos v. State, 591 So.2d 160 (Fla. 1991) [death sentence 

reversed for new sentencing where record not clear that trial 

court adhered to the procedure required by Rosers v. State, 511 

So.2d 526, 534 (Fla. 1987), and Campbell v. State, 571 So.2d 415, 

419-420 (Fla. 1990), and reaffirmed in Parker v. Dusqer, 498 U.S. 

308 (1991)l ; Lamb v. State, 532 So.2d 1051 (Fla. 1988) (death 

sentence reversed and remanded where unclear whether court had 

properly considered all mitigating evidence); Mann v. State, 

supra; Lucas v. State, supra. 

In a line of cases commencing with Lockett v. Ohio, 438 

U.S. 5 8 6  (1978), the United States Supreme Court held that a 

trial court may not refuse to consider, or be precluded from 

considering, any relevant mitigating evidence offered by a 

defendant in a capital case. The Lockett holding is based on the 

distinct peculiarity of the death penalty. An individualized 
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decision is essential in every capital case. Lockett, 438 U.S. 

at 604-605. The Supreme Court has consistently reiterated the 

Lockett holding. See, e.q., Hitchcock v. Duqqer, 481 U.S. 393 

(1987); Skipper v. South Carolina, 476 U.S. 1 (1986). 

In Campbell v. State, 571 So.2d 415, 419-20 (Fla. 

1990), and Nibert v. State, 574 So.2d 1059, 1062 (Fla. 1990), 

this Court held that, where uncontroverted evidence of a mitigat- 

ing circumstance is presented, the trial court must find that the 

mitigating circumstance has been proved. This Court will not 

tolerate a trial court’s unexplained rejection of substantial 

and/or uncontroverted evidence. See, e.q., Santos v. State, 591 

So.2d 160 (Fla. 1991) and Hall v. State, 614 So.2d 473, 478-9 

(Fla. 1993). 

ing factor is within the province of the sentencing court, a 

valid mitigating circumstance cannot be dismissed as having no 

weight. Dailev v. State, 594 So.2d 254 (Fla. 1991). See also 

Eddinss v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104, 114-15 (1982). 

While the relative weight to be given each mitigat- 

Since the clarification by this Court concerning the 

proper treatment of mitigating evidence, counsel has noticed a 

disturbing trend in trial courts’ sentencing orders. In dealing 

with mitigating factors, trial courts (as did the sentencing 

judge in Appellant’s case) frequently find that a mitigating 

circumstance exists, but unilaterally give the factor very little 

weight. 

that three mitigating circumstances applied to the murder. 

108) However, the trial court attributed virtually no weight to 

Spencer’s trial judge concluded without any analysis 

( R  
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the plethora of mitigating factors. The court decided that the 

singular nonstatutory mitigating factor deserved only "very * 
little weight,Il and the statutory mental.mitigators (which this 

Court had to tell the trial judge to find and which Justice Kogan 

indicated should cause a reduction of the sentence to life) were 

not entitled to great weight. (R 108, 118) 

The acts of the Defendant clearly show 
that he knew what he was doing and he 
knew it was wrong. After carefully 
reviewing the record, and taking all of 
the mitigating circumstances in the 
light most favorable to the Defendant, 
this Court finds that they had a very 
small, if any connection to the murder 
of Karen Spencer. 

Thus, while this Court gives the 
mitigating of (sic) circumstances of 
extreme mental or emotional disturbance 
and impaired capacity to conform his 
conduct to the requirements of the law, 
some weight, it is clear that by any 
reasonable assessment and evaluation of 
the evidence5 that I can not give them 
overwhelmingly great weight. 

( R  118) (emphasis and footnote added). In light of the minuscule 

weight which the trial court incorrectly and unconstitutionally 

allotted to the numerous uncontroverted mitigating circumstances, 

it erroneously concluded that the aggravating circumstances 

outweighed the mitigating Circumstances, thus warranting the 

ultimate sanction. ( R  119) 

While the Lockett doctrine is clearly violated by the 

Apparently, in stating this, the trial court found this 
Court's opinion concerning this mitigation (and especially 
Justice Kogan's opinion) to be an unreasonable assessment and 
evaluation of the evidence. See SDencer v. State, suDra at 384- 
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explicit refusal to consider mitigating evidence, it is no less 

subverted when the same result is achieved tacitly, as in this 

case. By refusing to give Appellant's uncontroverted, mitigating 

evidence any substantial weight, the trial court has vaulted this 

state's capital jurisprudence back to the unconstitutional days 

prior to Hitchcock v. Dusqer, 4'81 U.S. 393 (1987)- 

Prior to Hitchcock, this Court adopted a "mere presen- 

tation" standard wherein a defendant's death sentence would be 

upheld where the trial court permitted the defendant to present 

and argue a variety of nonstatutory mitigating evidence. 

cock v. State, 432 So.2d 42, 44 (Fla. 1983). The United States 

Supreme Court rejected this "mere presentationtt standard, and 

held that the sentencer not only must hear, but also must not 

refuse to weigh or be precluded from weighing the mitigating 

evidence presented. Hitchcock v. Dusser, sumca. Since Hitch- 

cock, this Court has repeatedly reversed death sentences imposed 

under the "mere presentation" standard where there was explicit 

evidence that consideration of mitigating factors was restricted. 

E.q., Rilev v. Wainwriqht, 517 So.2d 656 (Fla. 1987); Thompson v. 

Duqqer, 515 So.2d 173 (Fla. 1987). 

Hitch- 

The recent trend of trial courts attaching no real 

weight to uncontested mitigating evidence, results in a de f a c t o  

return to the "mere presentationt1 practice condemned in Hitchcock 

v. Duqqer. Appellant's trial court's refusal to give any sisnif- 

icant weight to Appellant's uncontroverted mitigating evidence 

violates the dictates of Lockett and its progeny. By allowing 
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trial courts unfettered discretion in determining what weight to 

give mitigating evidence, trial judges can effectively accomplish 

an "end runt1 around the constitutional requirement that capital 

sentencings should be individualized. 

has effectively failed to consider mitigating evidence within the 

statutory and constitutional framework. 

Appellant's trial judge 

By giving "very little weight," to valid, substantial 

mitigation, trial judges can effectively ignore Lockett, suDra, 

and the constitutional requirement that capital sentencings must 

be individualized. The trial court's refusal to give any signif- 

icant weight to valid mitigating evidence, calls into question 

the constitutionality of Florida's death penalty scheme. 

V, VI, VIII and XIV, U.S. Const.; Art. I, § §  9, 16 and 17 Fla. 

Const. 

Amends. 

B. The Trial Judqe Considered InaDDropriate Aqqravatinq 
Circumstances. 

It is well established that aggravating circumstances 

must be proven beyond a reasonable doubt by competent, substan- 

tial evidence. Martin v. State, 420 So.2d 583 (Fla. 1982); State 

v. Dixon, 283 So.2d 1, 9 (Fla. 1973). The state has failed in 

this burden with regard to at least one of the aggravating 

circumstances found by the trial court. The court's findings of 

fact, based in part on matters not proven by substantial, compe- 

tent evidence beyond a reasonable doubt, do not support these 

circumstances and cannot provide the basis for the sentence of 
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death. e 
1. Heinous, Atrocious, Or Cruel 

The trial court found, and this Court on the initial 

appeal approved, this factor based solely upon the method of the 

killing.6 However, f o r  the same reasons that the factor of 

cold, calculated, and premeditated fell [see SDencer v. State, 

supra, 6 4 5  So.2d at 384, and subsection §B (21, infral, so, too, 

must this factor fall. Because of the defendant's uncontroverted 

and extreme mental impairment and state of stress and rage, there 

can be no showing that the defendant intended for the victim to 

suffer or even intended the method f o r  the killing. 

This Court has defined the aggravating circumstance of 

heinous, atrocious, or  cruel in State v. Dixon, supra 

It is our interpretation that heinous 
means extremely wicked or shockingly 
evil; that atrocious means outrageously 
wicked and vile; and that cruel means 

at 9 :  

Foster v. State, 654 So.2d 112 (Fla. 19951, provides 
authority for this Court to revisit this issue on this appeal 
after remand. On a previous appeal in Foster, the Court had 
rejected a constitutional challenge to the standard jury instruc- 
tion on the coldness circumstance, but remanded for the trial 
court to enter a new sentencing order expressly evaluating 
mitigation under Campbell and Rosers v. State, 5 1 1  So.2d 526 
(Fla. 1987). Foster v. State, 614 So.2d 455 (Fla. 1992). On the 
appeal after the remand, this Court allowed the appellant to 
relitigate the jury instruction issue because the sentence was 
Itnot yet final." 654 So.2d at 115,  n.6. So, too, should the 
appellant here be permitted to relitigate this issue, especially 
in light of the extreme weight the trial court gave to this 
circumstance in its new sentencing decision. See also Proffitt v. 
- I  State 510 So.2d 896 (Fla. 1987) (this Court must review the 
factors anew on an appeal from remand); Santos v. State, 629 
So.2d 838 (Fla. 19945: I. 26  



designed to inflict a high degree of 
pain with utter indifference to, or even 
enjoyment of, the suffering of others. 

Recognizing that all murders are heinous, Tedder v. State, 322 

So.2d 908, 910 (Fla. 1975), this Court further defined its 

interpretation of the legislature's intent that the aggravating 

circumstance only apply to crimes which are especially heinous, 

atrocious, or  cruel. 

What is intended to be included are 
those capital crimes where the actual 
commission of the capital felony was 
accompanied by such additional acts as 
to set the crime apart from the norm of 
capital felonies - -  the conscienceless 
or pitiless crime which is unnecessarily 
tortuous to the victim. 

State v. Dixon, supra at 9. 

Quoting from Sochor v. Florida, 504 U.S. , 119 

L.Ed.2d 326, 339 (1992), this Court has held that, f o r  this 

factor to apply, the crime must not only be unnecessarily tortur- 

ous to the victim, but it also must be conscienceless or pitiless 

on the defendant's part. Richardson v. State, 604 So.2d 1107, 

1109 (Fla. 1992). Thus, as this Court has stated in Santos v. 

- I  State 591 So.2d 160, 163 (Fla, 1991), and Cheshire v. State, 568 

So.2d 908, 912 (Fla. 1990), this factor is appropriate only in 

torturous murders which exhibit a desire to inflict a high degree 

of pain, or an utter indifference to or enjoyment of the suffer- 

ing of another. &, e.q., Douslas v. State, 575 So.2d 165, 166 

(Fla. 1991) (torture-murder involving heinous acts extending over 

four hours), The present murder happened too quickly and during 

a highly emotional confrontation with no suggestion that Spencer 
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consciously intended to inflict a high degree of pain or other- 

wise torture the victim. In fact, Dusty blacked out during the 

after being repeatedly struck on the head with a rifle butt and 

has absolutely no recollection of the actual killing (which 

amnesia the doctor's opined was genuine), (PR 208-209, 356,  371, 

378-381) Thus, there was no intentional infliction of pain and 

no utter indifference to or enjoyment of the suffering of anoth- 

er. 

In Clark v. State, 609 So.2d 513 (Fla. 19921, the 

victim was shot in the chest from a distance of ten feet with a 

single-shot, sawed-off shotgun. Clark reloaded the weapon, 

walked to the victim and killed him with a shot to the head. 

This Court rejected the trial court's improper application of the 

HAC factor, explaining that simply because the victim was aware 

of his impending death and remained conscious for some period of 

time before being killed does not make the murder unnecessarily 

torturous to the victim. Clark, sumra. The same basis for 

application of the HAC factor here is likewise erroneous. 

Though this factor has been approved in diverse factual 

situations, a consistent thread has been that the victim was 

intentionally made to suffer prior to being killed. See Omelus v. 

State, 584 So.2d 563, 566 (Fla. 1991) (Itwe find that the heinous, 

atrocious or cruel aggravating factor cannot be applied vicari- 

ously.ll) ; Teffeteller v. State, 439 So.2d 843 (Fla. 1983) ("The 

fact that the victim lived for a couple of hours in undoubted 

pain and knew that he was facing imminent death, horrible as this 
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prospect may have been, does not set this senseless murder apart 

from the norm of capital felonies."). See also, Amoros v. State, 

531 So.2d 1256, 1260-61 (Fla. 1988). 

In Porter v. State, 564 So.2d 1060, 1063 (Fla. 19901, 

this Court rejected the trial court's application of the HAC 

factor where the evidence was Itconsistent with the hypothesis 

that Porter's was a crime of passion, not a crime that was meant 

to be deliberately and extraordinarily painful." (Emphasis in 

original). The facts here are quite comparable. To fail to 

apply this rationale of Porter to t h e  instant case would be to 

invite arbitrariness and capriciousness back into the death 

penalty scheme. 

"It is of vital importance to the defendant and the 

community that any decision to impose the death sentence be, and 

appear to be, based on reason rather than caprice or emotion." 

Gardner v. Florida, 430 U.S. 349, 358 (1977). There is no 

logical reason to apply a statutory aggravating factor in "strict 

liabilitytt fashion simply because the way it occurred was an 

unintended consequence. If it can be shown that a particular 

person intended that a victim suffer, a rational basis exists for 

application of the HAC factor. See Cochran v. State, 547 So.2d 

928, 931 (Fla. 1989); Porter v. State, susra. 

There is no proof that Dusty Spencer intended that his 

wife suffer unnecessarily, especially where the evidence conclu- 

sively shows that Dusty's actions were not intentionally brutal, 

but that he was merely reacting to his mental condition, that he 
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was unable to control his actions. 

Q [prosecutor]: . . . Is it important 
how he did the murder when you consider 
whether his ability to conform his con- 
duct to the requirements of law was 
impaired? You consider that important 
to look at? 

8 

A [Dr. Catherine Burchl : It is very 
important to consider his behavior on 
that morning. And the irrationality of 
his actions. And it is important to 
consider the brutality and the extreme- 
ness of the act. I mean, he killed her 
about five or six times, probably. It 
is very important in understanding his 
loss of control and inability to con- 
trol. 

* * * 

The part that refers to his inability to 
conform his conduct to the requirements 
of law refers to that part of his per- 
sonality, the overcontrolled hostility 
part, when he is controlled and con- 
trolled and controlled, and then when he 
is threatened directly, he loses it. He 
went into a state where he committed 
this murder, and he wasn’t even able to 
remember it. He wasn’t aware of what he 
was doing at the time he was doing it. 

( P R  205, 2 0 9 )  This uncontroverted testimony shows the relation- 

ship between the aggravating factor of heinousness and the mental 

mitigation presented here: 

specifically negates any showing of the aggravator since he was 

incapable of consciously intending to inflict pain, 

and torture on the victim, his wife. 

the defendant’s mental condition 

suffering, 

As this Court recognized in 

its previous opinion, when rejecting the coldness factor, his 

severe mental impairment negated his ability to handle and 

control his emotions in this stressful confrontation: 
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Although there is evidence that Spencer 
contemplated this murder in advance, we 
find that the evidence offered in sup- 
port of the mental mitigating circum- 
stances also negates the cold component 
of the CCP aggravator. During the pen- 
alty phase, a clinical psychologist 
testified that Spencer thought that 
Karen was trying to steal the painting 
business, which was a recapitulation of 
a similar situation with his first wife. 
The psychologist also testified that 
Spencer's ability to handle his emotions 
is severely impaired when he is under 
such stress. A neuropharmacologist 
agreed that Spencer has "very limited 
coping capability," "manifests emotional 
instability when he is confronted with 
[sudden shocks and stresses], II and "is 
going to become paranoid when stressed." 
This expert opined that Spencer's per- 
sonality structure and chronic alcohol- 
ism rendered him "impaired to an abnor- 
mal, intense degree." In light of this 
evidence, we find that the trial court 
erred in finding that the murder was 
CCP * 

Spencer v. State, supra at 384. So, too, in light of this same 

evidence, is the factor of HAC negated since Dusty was not in 

control of his actions and emotions, and thus was unable to con- 

sciously and intentionally inflict pain, suffering, and torture 

on the victim. This evidence was never refuted. 

The facts here are woefully short of establishing 

beyond a reasonable doubt that Karen's murder was intended to be 

unnecessarily torturous, that is, that it was especially heinous, 

atrocious or cruel as that statutory aggravating factor has been 

consistently applied by this Court. Because the judge based the 

death penalty on this improper consideration, and because the 

jury was permitted to consider it, that sentence must be vacated. 
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2 .  Nonstatutory Assravatins Circumstances - -  CCP revisited 

A s  noted earlier in this brief, this Court struck the 

statutory aggravating factor of cold, calculated, and premeditat- 

ed on the initial appeal, finding as a matter of law that that 

factor did not apply in the instant domestic situation and was, 

in fact, specifically negated by the mental health experts' 

testimony, which testimony was unrefuted. Spencer v. State, 645 

So.2d at 384. Following the remand, the trial court did not 

specifically list this factor as an aggravating circumstance. 

However, not listing it was the only difference; the trial 

judge's sentencing order is replete with this factor as a justi- 

fication for imposing the death sentence. ( R  116-118) The 

following are just a few of the examples wherein the judge used 

this inappropriate aggravator in his weighing decision: 

. . . Dr. Burch could not rule out that 
the Defendant thought about and fanta- 
sized about killing the victim. 

* * * 

The evidence in this case showed that 
the Defendant Dusty Ray Spencer, ex- 
pressed the desire to murder his wife 
and that he carried out this intention. 

* * * 

The experts said that the murder 
occurred because the Defendant thought 
the victim was trying to take his money 
or steal his business. It is to be 
noted that the Defendant told the ex- 
perts that (sic) went to the house to 
get the title to his vehicle. 
Defendant had clearly indicated what his 
intentions were when he was in jail, 
i.e. he was going to fuck her up and 

But the 
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finish what he had started, if she did 
not get him the money. 

The facts leading up to the killing 
and the nature of the killing are indic- 
ative of a deliberate thought process by 
the Defendant to kill Karen Spencer, if 
she did not comply with his wishes, The 
acts of the Defendant clearly show that 
he knew what he was doing and he knew it 
was wrong. 

(R 115, 117-118) 

By continuing to give extensive weight to this stricken 

aggravating circumstance in its determination for a death sen- 

tence, the trial court is essentially still finding what this 

Court has said is an inappropriate aggravator. Spencer v. State, 

supra. In utilizing this factor, then, the trial court has all 

but ignored this Court's mandate or, at the very least, is now 

utilizing a nonstatutory aggravating circumstance in its weighing 

process. 

nonstatutory aggravating circumstances, and, in particular, the 

use of llpremeditationll as a nonstatutory aggravator. Geralds v. 

This Court has repeatedly denounced such usage of 

- I  State 601 So.2d 1157 (Fla. 1992); Blair v. State, 406 So.2d 418 

(Fla. 1981); Lucas v. State, 376 So.2d 1149 (Fla. 1979); Rilev v. 

- I  State 3 6 6  So.2d 19 (Fla. 1978); Elledse v. State, 346 So.2d 998 

(Fla. 1977). See also Barclav v. Florida, 463 U.S. 939, 956 

(1983). 

Similarly, the trial court, in extensively relying on 

the alleged December 10th incident and the alleged December 11th 

threat (which were only established by rank hearsay [see Point 

11, infral) also utilized a nonstatutory aggravating factor, to- 
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wit: criminal allegations without any convictions. Odom v. State, 

403 So.2d 936 (Fla. 1981). Also, the court used the factors of 

the defendant's successful business and his heroism in the 

military (matters which should be considered mitigating factors - 

Point I ( C )  , infra) to instead diminish or negate the 

mitigating circumstances of the defendant's mental state and his 

drug addiction and alcoholism. (R 117) Thus, the court was 

improperly utilizing these factors also as nonstatutory aggrava- 

ting circumstances. Lucas, supra; Elledqe, sums. Because of 

these improper considerations in the judge's weighing process, 

the sentence must be vacated. 

This Court's language in Trawick v. State, 473 So.2d 

1235 (Fla. 1985), is quite appropriate in the instant situation. 

In general, the trial court's find- 
ings are replete with statements that 
are not specifically linked to any stat- 
utory aggravating circumstance. While 
some of the findings may properly relate 
to statutory aggravating circumstances, 
the lack of clarity makes it difficult 
f o r  us to sort out the relevant and 
sufficient findings from the irrelevant 
or insufficient ones. We have noted 
several infirmities in the trial judge's 
findings. In effect the trial judge 
went beyond the proper use of statutory 
aggravating circumstances in his sen- 
tencing findings and the sentence of 
death cannot stand. See Proffitt v. 
Wainwrisht, 685  F.2d 1227 (11th Cir. 
1982); Brown v. State, 381 So.2d 690 
(Fla. 1980). 

Trawick v. State, suora at 1240. 

Additionally, the trial court, in repeatedly continuing 

to give heightened premeditation extensive weight in its determi- 
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nation of death, also still totally ignores the evidence present- 

ed by the expert witnesses that the defendant was suffering from 

extreme mental or emotional disturbance and that he was unable to 

conform his conduct to the requirements of the law and possess 

heightened premeditation. See Spencer v. State, supra. (a 
Point I, §C, infra) In fact, the doctors specifically negated 

heightened premeditated by stating that the defendant, in his 

mental state, was unable to formulate any coherent, reasonable 

plan. (PR 209, 373-374) When questioned about the defendant’s 

prior threats to the victim, a factor on which the trial judge 

still placed great weight in finding death to be appropriate, one 

doctor stated: 

[Dr. Jonathan Lipman]: What it means 
is that he is emotionally overreactive. 
I’m sure you never personally have done 
it, but said something that you didn‘t 
mean, like 1/11 kill you for that. 
People sometimes do it when they lose 
control of their emotional stability. 
Because of Dusty’s chronic alcoholic 
condition, and because of his borderline 
personality disorder, he was at that 
edge of discontrol, in terms of emotion- 
al stability. He was unstable. His 
disequilibrium rendered him vulnerable, 
rendered him uncontrolled, in a verbal 
sense. 

Q [prosecutor] : And you are talking 
about December Ilth, 1991, in the j a i l ?  
Is that right? 

A :  Then, and on the other three 
occasions, he will have been in a condi- 
tion, due to his chronic alcoholism, of 
extreme emotional instability. 

* * * 

He may not have understood the impact it 
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had on her. . . . It may have just been 
an expression of displeasure. 

* * * 

I’m confident that his emotional 
state at that time [while in jail on 
December 11, 19911 is consistent with 
the kind of emotionality and exaggera- 
tion that would have led him to say such 
a thing. 

* * * 

His paranoid personality structure, 
coupled with his overemotionality due to 
his condition may well in fact have led 
him to believe that this was some kind 
of unfair thing that was happening to 
him. You and I may think well, I’m in 
jail, and it’s just and right that I am 
here. I should suffer here. But to a 
person in Dusty’s condition, he may feel 
very, very insulted, indeed. So, to 
answer your question, indeed he may not 
have known what it means, in his condi- 
tion. 

* * * 

That kind of ideation, though, is 
very typical, even for people not in his 
condition, when they are dealing with 
what is obviously divorce, separation, 
an unfaithful wife, and since you men- 
tioned that she called the police, let 
me put that in context from his history 
point of view. See, when you review, as 
I have, couple’s histories, you general- 
ly find that before the end, before the 
piecework, before the final stroke, 
there is a chain, a chain of assault, 
beatings, that got more and more out of 
control, and the couple is usually hard- 
pressed to say how any one of them star- 
ted. They just push each other‘s but- 
tons. In his case, however, there was 
no such history in this marriage. Some- 
thing happened that he didn’t know 
about. He wasn’t as up to speed as 
Karen. He couldn‘t believe that she 
would call the police. Usually, when 
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the police are called, it’s because 
there has been a series of these assaul- 
tive altercations. This was the first. 
And she called the police. Something 
else was going on in his paranoid mind, 
and perhaps even in reality, so that he 
was caught unawares. He wasn’t ready 
for it suddenly to move into the end 
zone. Which helps explain his disequi- 
librium a little bit, I think. 

( P R  360-364) When questioned by the prosecutor about the defen- 

dant’s planning the incident by donning rubber gloves and parking 

away from the scene as a careful plan to commit the crimes, one 

doctor opined: 

Q [prosecutor]: . . . Based upon your 
computations at the time of this murder, 
that in your opinion, he was experienc- 
ing cognitive confusion and disorienta- 
tion, as a result of his chronic alcohol 
use? 

A [Dr. Jonathan Lipman] : Right. 

* * * 

Q: When would that cognitive confu- 
sion and disorientation have begun be- 
fore the time of the murder? 

A: It would have been at a constant 
and low level, and observable to someone 
trained to observe it. All the time, 
actually. However, when confronted with 
stress, when the borderline syndrome 
triggers active emotional instability, 
basically when she screamed, in fact, 
that’s when it became profound, obvious- 
lY * 

* * * 

That explanation on where he parked the 
car was part of the putting on the rub- 
ber gloves episode. When he thought 
that he will be going into the house and 
stealing it [the car title]. 
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Q: At that point in time, when he 
was parking the car away from the house, 
was that parking of the car away from 
the house part of his cognitive confu- 
sion, and disorientation? 

A: Yes, actually. His stimuli being 
this was part of his confusion and dis- 
orientation. 

* * * 

Let me explain why. The answer is 
yes, but let me explain why. Doesn’t 
really matter where he parks his car. 
His wife and his stepson are going to 
have to deal with him when he walks in. 
He can put it in the driveway, put it on 
the road. This boy is confused. He is 
fooling no one. Do I make myself clear? 

Q: Okay. Are you presuming that he 
parked the car away from the house with 
a specific purpose? 

A :  I think at the time he thought he 
had a specific purpose, but that specif- 
ic purpose doesn’t make any sense to us. . . . Being covert. 

* * * 

The fact that he was going into an 
occupied house, that was going to be 
receiving numerous men in fifteen min- 
utes, painters, and that he knew that, 
because that was a routine at that time, 
and the fact that the vehicles were 
outside, and that there was nothing 
secret about going into the house, indi- 
cates that to me, whatever reason he 
had, and I know he did have a reason, a 
sort of a covert reason, a secretive 
reason, for hiding the car around the 
side of the - -  out of the sight of t h e  
house, was in actual fact meaningless, 
and therefore, indicative of his confu- 
sion, hiding the car around the side of 
the street, was a symptom of his confu- 
sion. 

( P R  3 7 2 - 3 7 4 )  e 3 8  



This uncontroverted evidence firmly establishes that 

Dusty was suffering from a severe mental illness which would have 

precluded him from the type of heightened premeditation utilized 

by the judge in weighing circumstances. It thus has no place, 

factually or legally, in the trial court's sentencing order or 

decision. 

These improper factors must be stricken from the 

sentencing decision, the sentence vacated, and the case remanded 

f o r  imposition of a life sentence. 

C. Mitiqatinq Factors, Both Statutory and Non-Statutory, Are 
Present Which Outweish Anv Appropriate Aqqravatinq Factors 

In CamDbell v. State, 571 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1990), t h i s  

Court set out the proper formula for addressing the weighing of 

mitigating and aggravating circumstances. In Campbell, the 

Florida Supreme Court held that a trial court Ilmust find as a 

mitigating circumstance each proposed factor that is mitigating 

in nature and has been reasonably established by the greater 

weight of the evidence.l' u., citing Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 

586, 604 (1978); Brown v. Wainwrisht, 392 So.2d 1327 (Fla. 1981). 

Where there is uncontroverted evidence of a mitigating circum- 

stance, the trial court must find that the mitigating circum- 

stance has been proven. Nibert v. State, 574 So.2d 1059 

(Fla, 1 9 9 0 ) ;  Kisht v. State, 512 So.2d 522 (Fla. 1987); Cook v. 

State, 542 So.2d 954 (Fla. 1989); Pardo v. State, 5 6 3  So.2d 77 

(Fla. 1990). In Roqers v. State, 511 So.2d 526, 534 (Fla. 19871, 
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this Court enunciated a three-part test for weighing evidence: 

[Tlhe trial court's first task . . . is 
to-consider whether the facts alleged in 
mitigation are supported by the evi- 
dence. After the factual finding has 
been made, the court then must determine 
whether the established facts are of a 
kind capable of mitigating the defen- 
dant's punishment, i.e., factors that, 
in fairness or in the totality of the 
defendant's life or character may be 
considered as extenuating or reducing 
the degree of moral culpability for the 
crime committed. If such factors exist 
in the record at the time of sentencing, 
the sentencer must determine whether 
they are of sufficient weight to coun- 
terbalance the aggravating factors. 

The record here shows clearly that the trial court 

below failed to adhere to the procedure required by Roqers and 

CamDbell, s u m a ,  and reaffirmed by the United States Supreme 

Court in Parker v. Duqqer, suDra, 498 U.S. 3 0 8  (1991). The trial 

court inexplicably failed to find as mitigation unrebutted 

evidence of mitigating factors and, also without explanation, 

gave merely little or very little weight to extremely significant 

and unrebutted factors that, "in fairness or in the totality of 

the defendant's life or character, may be considered as extenuat- 

ing or reducing the degree of moral culpability for the crime 

committed.Il Roqers v. State, swra. See also Santos v. State, 591 

S0.2d at 163-164. 

Initially, it must be noted that the trial court 

utilized the wrong standard for determining what is mitigation 

and what weight it should have in the capital sentencing deci- 

sion. The court, in its sentencing order stated, "In weighting 
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(sic) the mitigating circumstances the Court must examine what 

connection they had to the murder of Karen Spencer." ( R  117) 

Thus, the trial court limited mitigation to matters directly 

connected to the killing, instead of also considering "the 

totality of the defendant's life or character." Roqers, suDra. 

This Court and the United States Supreme Court have repeatedly 

held that II[mlitigating evidence is not limited to the facts 

surrounding the crime but can be anything in the life of a 

defendant which might militate against the appropriateness of the 

death penalty for that defendant." Brown v. State, 526 So.2d 903, 

908 (Fla. 1988). See also Maxwell v. State, 603 So.2d 490, 491 & 

n.2 (Fla. 1992); Hitchcock v. Duqqer, 481 U.S. 393 (1987); 

Eddinss v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104 (1982). A mitigating circum- 

stance should be defined broadly as "any aspect of a defendant'a 

character or record any of the circumstances of the offense" 

that reasonably may serve as a basis for imposing a sentence less 

than death. Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586, 604 (1978) (emphasis 

added). By limiting the mitigation as the court expressly did 

here to "what connection they had to the murder" and thereby 

excluding that which related to "anything in the life of a defen- 

dant," is to unconstitutionally exclude relevant and crucial 

mitigation from the sentencing decision. In Brown v.  State, 

supra, this Court expressly disapproved of a sentencing order, 

quite similar to the one here, which concluded that appellant's 

family and educational background were not Ilmitigation in the 

eyes of this court or in the eyes of the law." 526 So.2d at 908. 
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